
BAREFOOT BAY
RECREATION DISTRICT

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting
June 22, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Building D&E

Agenda
Please turn off all cell phones

1. Thought of the Day

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Roll Call

4. Presentations and Proclamations

  A. Barefoot Bay 50th Anniversary Celebration Proclamation

5. Approval of Minutes

  A. Minutes dated June 11, 2021.

6. Treasurer’s Report

  A. Treasurer’s Report

7. Oath of Office

8. Reorganization of the BOT

9. Appointment to the NRP Sub‐Committee

  A. Neighborhood Revitalization Sub‐Committee Appointment

10. Audience Participation

11. Unfinished Business

12. New Business

  A. Adoption of FY 22 Budget

  B. Public Hearing and Adoption of FY 22 Assessment Rate

  C. Shopping Center Lease for Building 1 Unit 6 (Old Veteran's Support Office)

  D. Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades RFP Evaluation Committee Recommendation

  E.
Confirmation of Approval of Proposal for Building A Fire and Smoke Detection Hardware 
Installation Services

  F.
Proposal to Change BBRD's Charter to Increase the Size of the BOT to Seven Members and Three‐
year Terms

Page 1 of 134



  G. Review of the Florida Association of Special Districts Annual Conference

13. Manager’s Report

  A. June 22, 2021 Manager's Report

14. Attorney’s Report

15. Incidental Trustee Remarks

16. Adjournment

If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at 
this meeting, a record of the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim 
transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based 
(FS 286.0105). Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

1 | P a g e  

 

 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

June 11, 2021 

         1PM –Building D&E 

 

Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees held a Meeting on June 11, 2021, Building D&E 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Maino called the meeting to order at 1PM. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

Led by Ms. Brown. 

 

Roll Call  

Present: Mr. Maino, Mr. Grunow, Mr. Nugent, Mr. Morrissey. Also, present, John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager, Stephanie Brown, District Clerk, Property Services Manager, Matt Goetz, Food & Beverage 

Manager, Kathy Mendes, Charles Henley, Finance Manager and Rich Armington, Resident Relations Manager. 

 

Mr. Maino requested to add discussion item 8A to the agenda regarding recent water concerns raised by various 

residents, and item 9H, November 2020 Release of Liens. He also requested to remove 9C Policy Manual Revision 

Chits from the agenda. 

 

Mr. Nugent made a motion to accept additions to the agenda. Second by Mr. Morrissey. Motion passed. 

 

Presentations and Proclamations  

Chairman Maino presented the Milestone Award to Property Services Pools Supervisor Leslie Kadlec. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve the BOT Regular Meeting and Legal Services Discussion Workshop 
minutes dated May 25, 2021. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed. 
 

Treasurer’s Report  
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve the Treasurer’s Report for June 11, 2021, as read. Second by Mr. 

Morrissey. Motion passed.  

 
Audience Participation 
 
Jeanne Osborne-100 Cherokee Court-expressed her gratitude to Mr. Loveland for his service on the BOT and to 
the community.  
 
Nance Eisele-944 Barefoot Blvd-voiced her concern about an issue her neighbor had (836 Hawthorne) regarding 
DOR violation notices.  
 

Page 3 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

2 | P a g e  

 

Robert Schmidt-1013 Thrush Circle-spoke in favor of BBRD covering the cost to replace the roofing exhaust fan in 
RJ’s Restaurant. 
 
Mike Turney-1121 Pocatella Drive-spoke in favor of choosing a Trustee who has not already ran or served on the 
BOT. 
 
Lorraine Andrews-1221 Chipewa Drive-spoke in favor of legal counsel being at every BOT meeting. 
 
Mary Miller-906 Jacaranda Drive-spoke in favor of more residents attending BOT meetings and allowing 
candidates who previously ran being able to re-run for the BOT. 
 
 
Unfinished Business 
 
Brevard County Water System 
Mr. Maino explained how the county water system is managed and not associated with BBRD. He also stated that 
the water in BBRD has been tested and is safe. Mr. Morrissey provided a number (521-952-4610) to residents for 
Brevard County Water Department to call if they would like to have their water tested. Mr. Grunow and Mr. 
Nugent spoke in favor of having a Brevard County Representative come to BBRD and discuss water issues.  
 
Consensus of the BOT to contact the CVO to host a representative from Brevard County Water Department. 
 
New Business 
 
Selection of a Qualified Elector to Fill the Unexpired Term of Trustee Loveland 
Staff recommends the BOT appoint a qualified elector to the unexpired term of Trustee, formerly held by Randy 
Loveland. 
 
Mr. Grunow nominated Bruce Amoss. Mr. Morrissey nominated Hurrol Brinker. 
 
1st Round Vote-two votes for Mr. Brinker and two votes for Mr. Amoss 
2nd Round Vote-two votes for Brinker and two votes for Mr. Amoss 
3rd Round Vote-two votes for Mr. Brinker and two votes for Mr. Amoss 
 
Mr. Maino performed a coin toss (heads was Mr. Amoss and tales was Mr. Brinker). Mr. Amoss won the coin toss. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to appoint Bruce Amoss to the unexpired term of Trustee, formerly held by Randy 
Loveland. Second by Mr. Maino. Motion passed 3-1. Mr. Morrissey dissents.  
 
Request for Use of Shopping Center Space 
Staff recommends the BOT authorize General Counsel Repperger to draft a no cost lease with Paradise Planners 
for exclusive use of the vault (Building #2, part of Unit #2), authorize Chairman Maino to execute the lease when 
available, and authorize staff to procure a second shipping container for records retention purposes. 
 
Mr. Grunow asked if a quarterly report would be required from Paradise Planners. Mr. Maino responded that it 
would not be necessary as they are only using it for storage, and it is a smaller space.  

Page 4 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

3 | P a g e  

 

 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to BOT authorize General Counsel Repperger to draft a no cost lease with Paradise 
Planners for exclusive use of the vault (Building #2, part of Unit #2), authorize Chairman Maino to execute the 
lease when available, and authorize staff to procure a second shipping container for records retention purposes. 
Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed. 
 
 
Pro Shop and Softball Field Building Roof Replacements 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract for re-roofing of the Pro Shop and Softball Field Building at a cost of 
$22,500.00 to MB Enterprises and instruct staff to transfer the required funding from contingency. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to BOT award contract for re-roofing of the Pro Shop and Softball Field Building at a 
cost of $22,500.00 to MB Enterprises. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed. 
 
Golf Course Cart Barn Repairs 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract to Endeavor Construction, Inc. in the amount of $13,350.00 for 
repairs to the Golf Course cart barn. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to award contract to Endeavor Construction, Inc. in the amount of $13,350.00 for 
repairs to the Golf Course cart barn. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed. 
 
New Golf Course Scoreboard 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract to Barefoot Services, Inc. in the amount of $14,740.00 for the 
demolition of the current scoreboard and construction of a new scoreboard. 
 
Mr. Nugent Made a motion to award contract to Barefoot Services, Inc. in the amount of $14,740.00 for the 
demolition of the current scoreboard and construction of a new scoreboard. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion 
passed. 
 
Dismissal of DOR Violation Enforcement Case 20‐002616 (248 Dolphin Circle) 
The Community Manager and General Counsel recommend the BOT approve Dismissal of Litigation Case No.: 05-
2021-CA-021967-XXXX-XX, and bear its own legal fees and costs on this matter. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve Dismissal of Litigation Case No.: 05-2021-CA-021967-XXXX-XX, and bear 
its own legal fees and costs on this matter. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed. 
 
November 13, 2020, Release of Liens 
General Counsel recommends that the BOT approve preparation of a Satisfaction and Release of the Claim of Lien 
and Amended Claim of Lien for 853 Laurel Circle as previously authorized on November 13, 2020, and confirm its 
direction to BBRD Staff to record Satisfactions and Releases of Claims of Lien on properties previously authorized 
November 13, 2020. If the BOT does not intend to have BBRD Staff prepare and record Satisfactions and Releases 
as previously authorized, the BOT should specifically rescind its prior action taken on November 13, 2020, as to 
each specific property listed. 
 

Page 5 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

4 | P a g e  

 

Mr. Morrissey is not in favor of forgiving the lien for 853 Laurel Circle. Mr. Grunow stated he is not in favor of 
forgiving liens as a general rule, but spoke in favor going with General Counsel Repperger’s advice. Mr. Nugent 
also spoke in favor of taking General Counsel Repperger’s advice. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve preparation of a Satisfaction and Release of the Claim of Lien and 
Amended Claim of Lien for 853 Laurel Circle as previously authorized on November 13, 2020, and confirm its 
direction to BBRD Staff to record Satisfactions and Releases of Claims of Lien on properties previously authorized 
November 13, 2020. Second by Mr. Maino. Motion passed 3-1. Mr. Morrissey dissents. 
 
Manager’s Report 
 
Office of the District Clerk 

Veterans’ Kiosk Update – The data is uploaded to the software and the unit was delivered on June 8th. Once an 

electrical outlet is installed the Kiosk will be loaded with the software and data, large monitor installed, and 

artwork placed back on the wall. 

Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting Agenda 06/08/2021 Administration Building Conference Room at 9am 
Agenda includes: 

• 12 consent permits: 10 approved, 2 tabled for additional information 

• 11 other permits: 8 approved, 1 denied, 2 tabled for additional information 
 

Next ARCC Meeting 06/22/2021 

• Will be held in Administration Building Conference Room at 9am. 
 
VC Meeting 06/11/2021 in Bldg. D/E at 10am 

• 18 cases on the agenda 

• 10 cases came into compliance prior to the meeting 
 
Next Violations Committee Meeting 

• Scheduled for June 25th in Bldg. D/E at 10am 
 

Interesting Facts for May 

• 76 homes sold 

• 44 orientation sessions given (76 residents in attendance)  

 

Food & Beverage 

• Father’s Day is Sunday, June 20th, with TC and Sass lakeside from 2-6pm. We will feature Philly 
Cheese Steak and Dagwood sandwiches along with draught beer and drink specials from noon -
6pm. 

 

50th Anniversary Celebration of Barefoot Bay update – The really big event will be on Saturday, July 3rd.  The 

kickoff Golf tournament celebration is almost sold out, the Golf cart and bicycle parade starts at 11am and we will 

Page 6 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

5 | P a g e  

 

have great representation from the Clubs.  You do not want to miss the historical ceremony at 2pm on the 

Lakeside stage and the cake cutting afterwards.  Music, food, and beverages will round out a great day in the Bay!  

Flyers with all the details are posted. 

 
Property Services 

• Cleaned out drainage ditch off Egret Circle 

• Met with potential new vendor  

• Set up and tore down the Memorial Day events 

• Changed light switches at the Pro Shop 

• Ran electrical lines for the CCTV at Building A 

• Pressure washed behind Building A 

• Stained the concrete behind Building A 

• Repaired vandalized gate at the pier 

• Filled a depression in the turf behind Pool #3 

• Inspected hurricane supplies for the upcoming 2021 season  

• Performed maintenance at the beach 

• Began the install of the Veterans’ memorial kiosk  

• Pressure washed Pool #3 building and sidewalks 

• Re-painted the gutters and downspout at Pool #3  

• Repaired the driveway at Pool #3   

• Installed river rock at the cart barn  

• June 10, 2021, Kids swim attendance 20 Kids   

 
Golf-Pro Shop 

• Jr. Golf “COVID-19 safe” Camp details  
o Two Sessions 

▪ Pick up application at Golf Course Pro Shop or Administration Building  
▪ June 15 – July 1 
▪ July 6 – July 22 

o Jr. Golf Tournament on Saturday July 17th 
o Award Banquet July 22 at 4pm 

• Tournaments Contact the Pro Shop (664.3174) if you have questions or to sign -up 
o June 19th 

▪ John McCarthy Memorial Golf Tournament 
▪ 12pm Shotgun start 
▪ $18 to $33 based on club member/non-member status 

o July 3rd  
▪ Celebrating 50 years at BBRD golf celebration 
▪ 8:30 Shotgun start 
▪ $21.50 for members and $36.50 for non-members 

o July 17th Jr. Golf Tournament 
 

 

Page 7 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

6 | P a g e  

 

General Information 

• Shopping Center Re-roofing Project Update – The vendor placed dumpsters on the south side of 
the main building on June 2nd.  Once the forecast indicates consecutive dry days the project will 
start. 
 

• Building A Renovations Project Update  – The project continues to proceed with drop ceiling 
runners installed and flooring in the process of being installed.  

 
 
Attorney’s Report 
Mr. Repperger was excused. 
 
Incidental Trustee Remarks 
 
Mr. Grunow reminded residents of Flag Day. Mr. Grunow also spoke in favor of holding a workshop to discuss 
BOT Member selection procedures. 
 
Mr. Morrissey gave contact information for the Brevard County Water District (521-952-4610). He also expressed 
his gratitude to residents who participated during the BOT meeting. 
 
Mr. Nugent directed Mr. Coffey to contact Mr. Repperger regarding submitting the Paradise Planners lease and 
Steward land lease at the next BOT meeting. 
 
Mr. Maino reminded residents to report any suspicious activities around the community. 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 

The next meeting will be on June 22, 2021, at 7pm in Building D/E 

Mr. Morrissey made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Maino adjourned. 

Meeting adjourned at 2:46pm 

  
 
 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

         Jeff Grunow, Secretary         Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

 

Page 8 of 134



Total Petty Cash: 2,500.00$                    

530,625.66                 

530,625.66                 

2,150,206.58              

699,579.29                 

2,849,785.87              

3,382,911.53$     

 $                 33,179.53 

                                   -   

                                   -   

                    28,805.53 

61,985.06$           

Expenditures for 6/4/21 - 6/14/21
Check 

Number Vendor Description Check Amount

57185 ABM Landscape & Turf Services Golf Course & Ball Field Maint. - 5/21 38,955.02                        

57186 ABM Landscape & Turf Services Irrigation Parts - Gear Drives 5,423.00                          

57200 MGM Contracting, Inc Shopping Center Roof Replacement Mobilization Fee 23,240.00                        

57227 Florida Municipal Insurance Trust Insurance: 4th Installment 36,908.00                        

210604 Florida Department of Revenue Sales Tax: 5/21 12,057.52                        

US Dept of Treasurey Payroll Tax: Pay Period Ending 6/6/21 17,675.68                        

PayChex Net Payroll: Pay Period Ending 6/6/21 60,285.25                        

194,544.47$         

42,689.68$           

237,234.15$         Total Expenditures:

Expenditures under $5,000:

Total Deposits Received:

Total Expenditures $5,000 and above:

MB&T Money Market Account

Interest Received: Money Market Account

Interest Received: SBA Account

Barefoot Bay Recreation District
Treasurer's Report

June 22, 2021

Total Cash Balances in General Fund:

Assessments Received:

Daily Deposits:

Petty Cash

Cash Balances in General Fund as of 6/14/21

Operating Cash in Banks
MB&T Operating Account

Total Operating Accounts:

Interest Bearing Accounts

SBA Reserve Account

Total Interest Bearing Accounts:

Total Daily Deposits and Assessments Received for 6/4/21 - 6/14/21

Page 1

Page 9 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Title: Adoption of FY 22 Budget
Section & Item: 12.A
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: $7,058,141.00
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W. Coffey ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: attachment Resolution Adoption of FY22 Budget, Exhibit A 

summary proposed budget
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Adoption of Resolution 2021-09 which will adopt the FY 22 Budget of $7,058,141.00.
 

Background and Summary Information
The Board of Trustees (BOT) held a budget kick-off townhall style meeting on January 14, 2021 to solicit input from the 
public regarding the development of the FY 22 Budget and FY 22-26 Five-Year Financial Model and Capital Improvement 
Plan (5yrFM&CIP). The BOT then reviewed and modified the FY 22 Working Draft Proposed Budget during two 
workshops and three BOT Regular Meetings.
 
On May 25, 2021, the BOT authorized the mail out to property owners of the FY 22 Proposed Budget and proposed 
assessment of $826.08 per lot. Said summary budget is attached as Exhibit A. The complete line-item budget is provided 
separately as Exhibit B.
 
The Proposed FY 22 General Fund Budget is balanced at $7,058,141.00. 
Revenue/Sources enhancements include:
$49,068.00 from a total $0.84 increase in the monthly assessment rate to $68.84 (comprised of 1.234% increase to 
offset the impact of inflationary pressures on operating costs)
  $21,000.00 from a $50.00 increase in the one-time social membership fee from $750.00 to $800.00
  $210,000.00 from a $500.00 increase in the one-time social membership fee from   $800.00 to $1,300.00
An average 5.00% increase in Food & Beverage prices
 
Expenditures/Uses include:
The FY 22 Proposed General Fund Budget contains the following Decision Points and R&M/Capital projects:
3 operating decision points at a combined savings of $438.00
 $28,606.00     State mandated minimum wage increase (year 1 of 6)
·-$12,564.00    Elimination of 0.40 FTE administrative support positions
·-$16,480.00    Elimination of 0.85 FTE Seasonal Groundskeeper positions
 $755,500.00   17 Repair and Maintenance/Capital projects 
 $155,571.00   Contingency 
 
The FY 22 Proposed General Fund Budget contains 76.61 FTEs of which 35 are full-time plus 1.0 FTE via the contract 
with Special District Services, Inc.
 
Of note, a “public hearing” is not required to adopt the annual budget but is required to adopt the annual assessment 
rate.

Page 10 of 134



 
Pursuant to Sec. 418.304(4)(a), F.S., the annual budget is required to be adopted prior to July 1.
 
Staff recommends the BOT approve Resolution 2021-09 adopting the FY 22 Budget as mailed out to the property 
owners and attached as Exhibit A..

Page 11 of 134



Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION 2021- 09  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT 
BAY RECREATION DISTRICT ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING A 
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2021 AND 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

           WHEREAS, Section 418.304 (4) (a), Florida Statutes, requires the Board of Trustees of the 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District (the “District”) to prepare and adopt an itemized budget on or 
before July 1 of each year, which said budget shall show the amount of money necessary for the 
operation of the next ensuing fiscal year; and 

            WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the District has prepared said budget for the fiscal 
year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022, a copy of which is attached as 
Exhibit “A” to this Resolution; and 

            WHEREAS, the initial proposed summary draft of Exhibit “A” has previously been furnished 
to each owner of an improved residential parcel within the District as required by the said Section 
418.304 (4) (a); and 

            WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the District has also caused a copy of the said initial 
proposed draft budget to be made available for public inspection at the principal office of the 
District as required by the said Section 418.304 (4) (a); and 

            WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the District has found and determined that the budget 
which appears as Exhibit “A” of this Resolution is reasonably necessary to provide for the 
maintenance and operation of the District for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and 
ending September 30, 2022. 

            NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, that: 

Section 1.  The budget which appears as Exhibit “A” of this Resolution is hereby adopted 
by the District for the fiscal year of the District beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 
30, 2022; and the amounts set forth as revenues, expenses, and costs of sales in the said budget 
are hereby appropriated for the said fiscal year. 

            Section 2.  All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

            Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption, and the 
budget set forth in Exhibit “A” of this Resolution shall become effective October 1, 2021. 

 
 
 

Page 12 of 134



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ____.  The motion was 

seconded by Trustee _____ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was as follows: 

 
 

Chairman, Michael R. Maino  
Trustee, Jim Nugent  
Trustee, Michael Morrissey  
Trustee, Jeff Grunow  
Trustee, Bruce Amoss  

 
 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted this 22rd Day of 
June, 2021. 

 
     BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
 
 
     By:  ______________________________________ 
      MICHAEL R. MAINO 

CHAIRMAN 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      JEFF GRUNOW  
      SECRETARY 

 

Page 13 of 134



The public hearing to set the Assessment and Adopt the Budget

 will be held on June 22, 2021, Building D/E at 7:00pm

Barefoot Bay Recreation District

Proposed Budget - General Fund

Fiscal Year 22 (10/01/2021 – 9/30/2022)

The FY22 General Fund Proposed Budget is based on an assessment rate 

of $826.08 ($68.84/month) per year per lot.

FY22 contains the following revenue enhancements: 
• $49,068 from a total $0.84 increase in the monthly assessment rate to $68.84 (comprised of 1.234% 

increase to offset the impact of inflationary pressures on operating costs
• $21,000 from a $50.00 increase in the one-time social membership fee from $750.00 to $800.00
• $210,000 from a $500.00 increase in the one-time social membership fee from $800.00 to $1,300.00
• An average 5.00% increase in Food & Beverage prices

   FY20

Actual   

   FY21

Original 

Budget   

   FY21

Year-end

Estimate 

   FY22

Base 

Budget   

   FY22

Decision 

Points 

 FY22

Proposed 

Budget 

Revenues/Sources

Administration 4,094,850   4,006,703   4,020,861   3,998,292   49,068           4,047,360     

Resident Relations 57,079         100,315       40,714         88,500         -                 88,500          

Food & Beverage 647,930       1,286,340   450,101       1,346,179   -                 1,346,179     

Golf-Pro Shop 609,107       649,517       552,475       691,768       -                 691,768        

Property Services 325,713       317,200       345,511       338,550       231,000         569,550        

Vehicle Storage 160,280       157,449       168,656       179,819       -                 179,819        

Shopping Center 90,087         110,104       123,154       134,965       -                 134,965        

R&M/Capital Projects 20,950         1,000,000   2,556           -               -                 -                 

Total Revenues/Sources 6,005,997  7,627,628  5,704,028  6,778,073  280,068        7,058,141    

Expenditures/Uses -                         

Administration 1,106,499   1,340,490   1,167,641   1,413,630   -                 1,413,630     

Resident Relations 435,770       543,641       487,676       563,306       -                 563,306        

Food & Beverage 766,954       1,297,915   453,319       1,377,043   8,587             1,385,630     

Golf-Pro Shop 859,403       917,049       931,452       974,992       1,522             976,514        

Property Services 1,565,309   1,717,079   1,714,581   1,778,855   (10,547)          1,768,308     

Vehicle Storage 16,352         18,516         15,856         16,497         -                 16,497          

Shopping Center 70,397         36,073         42,250         38,368         -                 38,368          

Stormwater 57,100         50,547         49,872         21,520         -                 21,520          

R&M/Capital Projects 889,999       1,706,318   1,604,142   100,000       774,368         874,368        

Total Expenditures/Uses 5,767,784  7,627,628  6,466,789  6,284,211  773,930        7,058,141    

Exhibit A

Page 14 of 134



General Fund Revenues/Sources General Fund Expenditures/Uses

District Assessment Fee 4,025,436        F/T Salaries 1,410,366      

Recreation Fees 546,000           P/T Wages 908,577         

Badge & Add. Social Membership 23,550             Overtime 15,990            

Guest Passes 61,955             Special Pay 12,915            

Golf Memberships 233,075           Payroll Taxes 179,134         

Non Resident Golf Initiation Fees 1,050                401 A Benefit 19,665            

Fleet Golf Cart Rentals 86,955             Medical/Dental/Life Insurance 356,900         

Private Golf Cart Fees 90,899             Payroll Fees 22,650            

Handicap Fees 6,580                Professional Fees 79,580            

Golf Club Storage 205                   Legal Fees 110,553         

Practice Range 989                   Management Fees 173,228         

Greens Fees 145,801           Management Fees/Tax Roll 5,000              

Golf Rental Equipment 895                   Accounting & Auditing Fees 31,000            

Merchandise Sales 72,981             Software Subscriptions 50,115            

Coupons (18,056)            Operating Supplies 54,949            

Staff Discount (1,579)              Cleaning Supplies 33,878            

Beverage Sales 843,206           Chlorine 33,152            

Food Sales 501,378           Chemicals 3,903              

Building Rentals 4,560                Beverage Supplies 6,641              

DOR Enforcement Fees 14,000             Paper Supplies 21,280            

Grants and Loans 50,000             Small Tools & Hardware 10,118            

Interest Income 12,237             Fuel 26,023            

Vending Machine Income 261                   Collection Fees 79,560            

NSF Fees 40                     Collection Discounts 129,391         

Vendor Discount 212                   Property Taxes 35,474            

Sales Tax Discounts 360                   ICMA Retirement 1,000              

Delinquent Fee Collections 1,730                Employee Incentive 89,620            

Lien Fee Reimbursement 675                   Employee Recruitment & Testing 6,571              

Legal Fee Recovery 2,450                Lien & Recording Fees 1,360              

Ins. Proceeds (reimbursements) 3,000                Travel & Training 26,227            

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 1,450                Telephone, Internet, Cable 35,392            

(Golf) Youth Group Income 3,500                Postage 5,756              

Misc. Income General 28,042             Utilities/Electrical 87,645            

Vehicle Storage Income 177,917           Utilities/Propane 18,009            

Kayak Storage Income 1,422                Utilities/Water 45,445            

Leasing Income 101,597           Utilities/Solid Waste-Garbage 35,799            

Common Area Maint. Income 20,708             Utilities/Portable Toilets 4,175              

Real Estate Taxes Income 12,660             CVO Utilities 3,444              

Total G. F. Revenues: 7,058,141       Equipment Leasing 70,710            

Uniform Leasing 7,760              

Exhibit A

Page 15 of 134



Insurance 152,061        R&M/Capital Project Summary:

Resident Activities 17,025          

Workers Comp. Insurance 25,373          25,000          

Access System Service Fee 5,625             Awning South Side of Lounge 29,000          

Licenses, permits & lien fees 6,903             Lounge Outside Bar 109,000        

Printing 4,213             

Advertising 11,675          22,700          

Employee Clothing Allowance 7,439             

Bank Charges 31,495          4,700            

Dues & Subscriptions 25,618          

DOR Enforcement Expenses 2,145             4,700            

Election Expenses 8,980             

Golf Course Maintenance 470,472        5,900            

R & M Misc 22,619          Replace. R.R. Truck (2015 mid-size) 23,000          

R & M Buildings 78,664          

R & M Grounds 149,789        10,000          

R & M Equipment 68,171          Replacement P.S. Utility Cart (2016) 8,900            

R &M Pools 18,466          

Vehicle Maintenance 6,751             64,600          

Contingency 155,571        19th Hole Kitchen: New Hood/Stove 70,000          

Reserves -                 Lounge Walkin Cooler Replacement 68,000          

Music & Entertainment 117,472        Pool #3 Parking Lot Paving 75,000          

Food Costs of Sales 240,311        

Beverage Costs of Sales 312,091        100,000        

Soft Drinks & CO2 43,877          

Merchandise Cost of Sales 49,368          75,000          

Miscellaneous Expenditures 700                Tennis Court Resurfacing 60,000          

Debt Service Principal 1,944             Carpeting Miniature Golf Course

Capital projects 755,500        Total R&M/Capital Projects: 755,500        

Total G. F. Expenditures: 7,039,273     

FY22 Personnel Summary (FTEs):

Non-Capital Decision Point Summary: Full-time 35.00            

Part-time 41.61            

28,606          Total Positions: 76.61            

(12,564)         

(16,480)         

Total Non-Capital Decision Points: (438)              

Golf Course Lakebank Restoration: #5, 

#9, and #13

State mandated minimum wage 

increase (year 1 of 6)

Elimination of 0.40 FTE administrative 

support positions

Elimination of 0.85 FTE Seasonal 

Groundskeeper positions

Lounge Bathroom Air Handling Unit 

Replacement

Water and Sewer Office HVAC 

Condensing Unit Replacement

Shopping Ctr. (937) HVAC Roof 

Condensing Unit Replacement

Replacement HD Utility Cart (2008) 

used by Softball Association

Kitchen Trailer (replaces Pool #1 grill 

area)

Golf Course Lakebank Restoration: #6, 

#2, and #3

Replace Damaged Concrete 

Sidewalks/Assembly Areas

Replacement Sidewalks at Bldg. D/E 

and the 19th Hole

Be sure to join us for BBRD's 50th 
Anniversary Celebration of the first home
in BBRD on July 3, 2021 at the Community 

Center. Details about the parade, 
festivities and fireworks will be in the 

Exhibit A

Page 16 of 134



Barefoot Bay Recreation District

625 Barefoot Blvd.

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

Mr. & Mrs. Property Owner

1313 Mockingbird Lane

Barefoot Bay, 32978

Exhibit A

Page 17 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Title: Public Hearing and Adoption of FY 22 Assessment Rate
Section & Item: 12.B
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: $4,025,436.00 in FY 22 Revenues
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W. Coffey ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: attachment~Resolution Setting FY22 Assessment Rate
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Public Hearing for community input and adoption of Resolution 2021-10 implementing the FY 22 Assessment of $826.08 
per lot.
 

Background and Summary Information
The Board of Trustees (BOT) held a budget kick-off townhall style meeting on January 14, 2021 to solicit input from the 
public regarding the development of the FY 22 Budget and FY 22-26 Five-Year Financial Model and Capital Improvement 
Plan (5yrFM&CIP). The BOT then held two workshops and discussed the Proposed Budget twice during Meetings.
 
On May 25, 2021, the BOT authorized the mail out to property owners of the FY 22 Proposed Budget and proposed 
assessment of $826.08 per lot.
 
Per BBRD Policy Manual 2.8 Yearly Budget Schedule and Levy of Assessments, the BOT is required to hold a public 
hearing and adopt an assessment rate in June. However, Section 418.304(4)(b), F.S., specifically provides, “The trustees 
shall, on or before July 30 of each year, by resolution, fix the amount of the assessment for the next ensuing year. These 
special assessments may be collected in the manner provided for ad valorem taxes under chapter 197, subject to the 
conditions of s. 197.363. Prior to the adoption of the resolution fixing the amount of the assessment, the trustees shall 
hold a public hearing at which time qualified electors of the district may appear and be heard. Notice of the time and 
place of the public hearing shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation within the county at least 21 
days prior to the public hearing.”  Hence, if the BOT desires, the assessment adoption could be deferred one or two 
meetings.
 
Procedure:
The Chairman shall have General Counsel read the resolution.
The Chairman shall open the Public Hearing regarding FY 22 Proposed Assessment Rate.
The Chairman shall ask if any residents wish to comment on the FY 22 Proposed Assessment Rate of $826.08.
When the public comment is completed, the Chairman shall close the public hearing and entertain a motion from the 
BOT.
 
Staff recommends the BOT approve Resolution 2021-10 adopting the FY 22 Assessment of $826.08 as mailed out to the 
property owners.

Page 18 of 134



Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION 2021- 10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT ESTABLISHING AN ASSESSMENT OF $826.08 FOR EACH 
IMPROVED RESIDENTIAL LOT WITHIN THE SAID DISTRICT TO FUND THE 
2021/22 FISCAL YEAR OPERATING BUDGET OF THE DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 
THE  COLLECTION OF SAID ASSESSMENT IN THE MANNER PROVIDED FOR AD 
VALOREM TAXES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197.363, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
PROVIDING THAT SAID ASSESSMENT SHALL BE A VALID LIEN UPON EACH 
IMPROVED RESIDENTIAL LOT SO ASSESSED UNTIL SUCH ASSESSMENT HAS 
BEEN PAID IN FULL; PROVIDING THAT SAID ASSESSMENT SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED PART OF THE COUNTY TAX SUBJECT TO THE SAME PENALTIES, 
CHARGES, FEES, AND REMEDIES PROVIDED FOR THE ENFORCEMENT AND 
COLLECTION OF COUNTY TAXES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District (the “District”) 
has, by adoption of Resolution No. 2021-09; approved an operating budget for the District for 
fiscal year 2020/21 which requires total revenues in the amount of $7,258,141.00 for the said 
fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees has reasonably determined that the sum of 
$4,025,436 must necessarily be obtained through an assessment upon each improved 
residential lot within the District to fund the said operating budget; and 

            WHEREAS, the said total of $4,025,436 can be attained by an assessment of $826.08 for 
each of the estimated 4,873 improved residential lots within the District for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees has determined that it is in the best interests of the 
District to collect said assessment in the manner provided for ad valorem taxes as provided in 
Sec. 197.363, F.S.; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the District has also found and determined that it is 
reasonable and prudent to set forth (i) the lien rights of the District with respect to each 
improved residential lot so assessed until such assessment has been paid (ii) the method of 
enforcing the said assessment as provided by statute; and 

WHEREAS, all affected property owners have been provided notice of the public hearing 
on this Resolution in accordance with Sec. 418.304(4)(b), F.S.; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT 
BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, that: 

Section 1.  An assessment in the amount of $826.08 annually is hereby assessed for the 
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022 upon each improved 
residential lot within the Barefoot Bay Recreation District.  The said assessment shall be for 

Page 19 of 134



Page 2 of 2 

 

funding of the 2021/22 fiscal year operating budget of the District adopted by the District’s 
Resolution No. 2021-09. 

            Section 2.  The Board of Trustees hereby elects to collect said assessment in the manner 
provided for ad valorem taxes pursuant to the conditions of Sec. 197.363, F.S. as authorized by 
Sec. 418.304(4)(b), F.S. 

             Section 3.  Pursuant to Sec. 418.304 (4)(e)1, F.S., the assessment levied in Section 1 this 
Resolution, shall be a valid lien upon each improved residential lot within the District until it has 
been paid in full; shall be considered a part of the county tax; and is subject to the same 
penalties, charges, fees, and remedies provided for the enforcement and collection of county 
taxes.     

Section 4.  All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

  Section 5.  This Resolution confirms the assessment as reflected in the 2021/22 Budget 
which was adopted by the Board in Resolution 2021-09 on June 22, 2021. 

            Section 6.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ____________.  The 
motion was seconded by Trustee _____________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was 
as follows: 

 
Chairman, Michael R. Maino   
Trustee, Jim Nugent   
Trustee, Michael Morrissey   
Trustee, Jeff Grunow   
Trustee, Bruce Amoss   

 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted this 22nd Day of 
June 2021. 
 

 
     BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
 
 
     By: ______________________________________ 
      MICHAEL R. MAINO 

CHAIRMAN 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      JEFF GRUNOW  
      SECRETARY 

 

Page 20 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Title: Shopping Center Lease for Building 1 Unit 6 (Old Veteran's 

Support Office)
Section & Item: 12.C
Department: Shopping Center
Fiscal Impact: $ 7,740.80 Annual Rent, Property Taxes, and CAM minus 

sales tax
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W. Coffey ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: Shaw tenative old VA Service Center lease agreement 

22June21
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Consideration of approval of a lease with Shaw Medical for Building #1, Unit #6.
 

Background and Summary Information
The old Veteran's Support Office (Building #1, Unit #6) recently became vacant when the former tenant moved to a 
shared space with the Veteran's Gathering Space in Building 3. Recently staff has been approached by the existing 
tenant, Shaw Medical, who is interested in leasing the unit. The tentative lease agreement is attached and summarized 
below:

Lease starts on August 1, 2021
$10/square foot
4-year lease with 3 5 year renewals

Hence, staff recommends the BOT approve the lease proposal for Building #1, Unit #6 and instruct General Counsel 
Repperger to draft a formal lease and guaranty (for future BOT approval).

Page 21 of 134



Page 22 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Title: Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades RFP Evaluation Committee 

Recommendation
Section & Item: 12.D
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $186,015.00 (FY21 funding of $101,500.00)
Contact: Jeff Grunow, Trustee, Secretary, Matt Goetz, Property Services 

Manager, John W. Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: 060721 Shopping Center Electrical Upgrade RFP Evalauation 

Committee meeting minutes, Proposal combined, Proposal Opening 
Tally sheet 07Jun21

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Consideration of RFP evaluation committee recommendation.
 

Background and Summary Information
The FY21 Revised Budget contains the following budget in the REM/Capital Department for project (originally the 
project was budgeted as two separate budgeted projects, but later was designed to be executed as a combined 
project):
 
$82,400 Shopping Center Electrical Infrastructure Replacement (originally budgeted in FY19)
$19,100 Additional Parking Lights at the Shopping Center (originally budgeted in FY18)
$101,500 Total Budget
 
The project consists of the implementation of electrical infrastructure upgrades and recommendations as provided in 
the condition assessment report developed by TLC Engineering Solutions, Inc for Buildings 935 and 937 Barefoot Blvd in 
Barefoot Bay, FL.  Upgrades and modifications will replace aging, deficient, and/or hazardous equipment; increase 
efficiency and quality of site lighting, while reducing light pollution; provide code required working clearances around 
electrical equipment; and bring the existing building infrastructure in compliance with current Florida Building Code 
standards and requirements.  This will be accomplished through the replacement of existing aging, deficient, or 
hazardous electrical panels; replacement of existing and addition of new sight lighting in the parking areas and around 
the perimeter of the building, and relocation of existing mechanical equipment to provide adequate working clearance 
for electrical equipment.
 
The Policy Manual requires a request for proposal (RFP) process be used for any project anticipated to cost over 
$50,000. Additionally, the evaluation committee shall consist of three voting members (one Trustee, one employee 
from the user department and one non-employee resident as selected by the Community Manager) plus two non-
voting members (Chairman of the BOT and the Community Manager).
 
On April 27, 2021, the BOT authorized the re-release of a Request for Proposal for the project (originally released in late 
March 2021 but inadvertently not properly advertised). On June 7th, the evaluation committee met and opened the 
following bid:

Page 23 of 134



 
$186,015.00 Current Electrical Solutions, Inc. (sub-contractor for the Building A Renovations project)
 
The evaluation committee reviewed the proposal, staff’s perspective about the company’s work, and made an 
unanimous recommendation to recommend the BOT award contract to the firm for the work.
 
The reader should note the following facts:
- Due to the complexity of the project, staff recommends using TLC as construction administration services (response to 
permitting questions, response to vendor’s questions during the project, review of submittals/shop drawings, and one 
site inspection per discipline). The cost of said services is currently unknown as the receipt of the proposal is pending. A 
similar proposal for the re-roofing project cost $6,800.00
- Sufficient available fund balance is available to cover the budget overage.
 
If the BOT awards contract to Complete Electrical Solutions, Inc., General Counsel Repperger will commence drafting a 
contract which will ultimately be brought back to the BOT for formal authorization for Chairman Maino to execute.
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract for the Shopping Center electrical upgrades to Complete Electrical 
Solutions, Inc. in the amount of $186,015.00.
 
 

Page 24 of 134



Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

Shopping Center Electrical Upgrade Evaluation Committee Meeting 

Minutes for June 7, 2021 

 

Committee Member Trustee Maino called meeting to order at 10 a.m. 
 
Committee Chairman Grunow lead Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Committee Member Trustee Maino, Committee Member Trustee Grunow, Committee Member 
Goetz, Committee Member Klosky, and Committee Member John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM. 
 
Audience: Hurrol Brinker 
 
Election of Chairman 
Committee Member Goetz nominated Committee Member Trustee Grunow.  Approved 3-0. 
 
Opening of proposals 

• Current Electrical Solutions Inc. $186,015 
 
RFP review 
The committee reviewed the one proposal received for the project.  There was discussion about the 
aspects of the project, which will include panels in each unit and outside parking lot lighting upgrades, 
with two poles relocated, and other poles upgraded with new lighting.  The topic of the cost being 
significantly higher than the engineering studies and cost estimate was reviewed.  Mr. Coffey told the 
committee that the studies had taken place one and a half years ago as well as pre-COVID, and 
construction costs are now considerably higher. 
 
Committee member Klosky made a motion to send the Current Electrical Solutions Inc. contract 

proposal to the BOT for approval, seconded by Committee Member Goetz.  Motion approved 3-0. 

Committee Chairman Grunow canceled the next meeting scheduled for June 14, 2021, as all committee 

members are in agreement and no further meetings are needed. 

Committee member Matt Goetz made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Committee member Klosky, 

approved 3-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 10:40 am. 

 

 

Page 25 of 134



 

 

Page 26 of 134



Page 27 of 134



Page 28 of 134



Page 29 of 134



Page 30 of 134



Page 31 of 134



Page 32 of 134



Page 33 of 134



Page 34 of 134



Page 35 of 134



Page 36 of 134



Page 37 of 134



Page 38 of 134



Page 39 of 134



Page 40 of 134



Page 41 of 134



Page 42 of 134



Page 43 of 134



Page 44 of 134



Page 45 of 134



Page 46 of 134



Page 47 of 134



Page 48 of 134



Page 49 of 134



Page 50 of 134



Page 51 of 134



Page 52 of 134



Page 53 of 134



Page 54 of 134



Page 55 of 134



Page 56 of 134



Page 57 of 134



Page 58 of 134



Page 59 of 134



Page 60 of 134



Page 61 of 134



Page 62 of 134



Page 63 of 134



Page 64 of 134



Page 65 of 134



Page 66 of 134



Page 67 of 134



Page 68 of 134



Page 69 of 134



Page 70 of 134



Page 71 of 134



Page 72 of 134



Page 73 of 134



Page 74 of 134



Page 75 of 134



Page 76 of 134



Page 77 of 134



Page 78 of 134



Page 79 of 134



Page 80 of 134



Page 81 of 134



Page 82 of 134



Page 83 of 134



Page 84 of 134



Page 85 of 134



Page 86 of 134



Page 87 of 134



Page 88 of 134



Page 89 of 134



Page 90 of 134



Page 91 of 134



Page 92 of 134



Page 93 of 134



Page 94 of 134



Page 95 of 134



Page 96 of 134



Page 97 of 134



Page 98 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Title: Confirmation of Approval of Proposal for Building A Fire and 

Smoke Detection Hardware Installation Services
Section & Item: 12.E
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $14,688.18
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W. Coffey ICMA-

CM, Community Manager
Attachments: ADS signed proposal 08Jun21
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Confirmation of Community Manager’s approval of ADS proposal for fire and smoke detection hardware installation 
services.
 

Background and Summary Information
BBRD historically has contracted with a private company for the maintenance and monitoring of the smoke and fire 
detection system in Building A. Said system was partly disassembled to facilitate the renovations project. During an 
inspection of the building, ADS identified specific hardware that they claim they did not remove (and was not stored 
properly). Additionally, due to the extensive renovations to the HVAC duct work system they are unable to simply re-
install specific hardware where it was previously located. Attached is the bid to test existing wiring, and re-install 
hardware as needed. 
 
While the Policy Manual exempts a second quote requirement for this item (for quotes from vendors responsible for 
long-term maintenance or service), the cost is close to $15K (including permitting).  The general contractor will be 
finished within the next couple of weeks, if not sooner so the Community Manager decided not to make approval of this 
proposal wait till the June 22nd agenda for formal BOT approval and signed the proposal (even though it exceeded his 
spending limit).  Although Brevard County and the Department of Business and Professional Regulations will sign off on 
the project after the general contractor’s work is complete, we will not be able to use the building until the Fire 
Marshall’s office signs off on the fire and smoke detection system operating properly.
 
Hence, for transparency purposes, staff recommends the BOT confirm the Community Manager’s approval of smoke 
and fire detection system services for Building A in the amount of $14,688.18.
 

Page 99 of 134



Page 100 of 134



Page 101 of 134



Page 102 of 134



Page 103 of 134



Page 104 of 134



Page 105 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Title: Proposal to Change BBRD's Charter to Increase the Size of the 

BOT to Seven Members and Three-year Terms
Section & Item: 12.F
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: TBD
Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W. 

Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: BBRD-Charter-and-Amendments updated 2018, HB 1157 (2007)
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review of Trustee Grunow’s proposal to amend the BBRD Charter to increase the number of Trustees to seven 
members with three-year terms and direction to staff.
 

Background and Summary Information
The BBRD Charter, adopted in 1984, originally included a nine member BOT with two-year terms.  HB1157 was enacted 
into law in 2007 that upon the approval of the voters (November 6, 2007 special election) transitioned the size of the 
BOT to seven-members and then to the current five-members.
 
Earlier in this year, the BOT has on occasion discussed the pros and cons of expanding the size of the BOT to seven 
members and lengthening the term of service. Trustee Grunow requested this item be placed on the agenda for 
consideration.
 
General Counsel Repperger provided the following guidance regarding how to pursue such course of action in an email 
on June 14, 2021:
 
Taking the Board of Trustees to seven (7) members with three (3) year terms would require a local bill sponsored by Rep. 
Fine or Senator Mayfield.  The delegation meeting is probably very early this year (no later than October 2021), given the 
early start of the 2022 legislative session in January 2022.  It may be possible to get support from Rep. Fine or Mayfield, 
but unanimous delegation support is also required.  For that to happen bill language also needs to be drafted, reviewed, 
and authorized by the bill sponsor.
 
This item would not go to referendum this year, but possibly in November 2022 if supported by the legislative delegation 
and a local bill passes in the 2022 Legislative Session.  It is very important to keep in mind, given the fact that HB 1157 
(2007) (attached) gave the District authority to change the Board from its statutorily established number nine (9) to five 
(5), there will likely be a fair amount of push back in suggesting that the Board now go to seven (7) members.
 
Alternatively, the Board could authorize a referendum to propose effectively undoing the effect of HB 1157 and go back 
to a nine (9) member Board (with two (2) year terms) without another local legislative act, but I think that would 
probably be met with a similar amount of push back from the resident electors of the District (who approved going to a 
five (5) member Board of Trustees in the 2008 referendum election).
 
If you are interested in pursuing the seven (7) member initiative, I suggest having the Board authorize you to make an 

Page 106 of 134



appointment with Rep. Fine as soon as possible to see if he would support a local bill at the 2021 legislative delegation 
meeting.  That would be the first step.  I’d be glad to help in any way that I can.
 
Staff requests direction on this matter.

Page 107 of 134



Page 108 of 134



Page 109 of 134



Page 110 of 134



Page 111 of 134



Page 112 of 134



Page 113 of 134



Page 114 of 134



Page 115 of 134



Page 116 of 134



Page 117 of 134



Page 118 of 134



Page 119 of 134



Page 120 of 134



Page 121 of 134



Page 122 of 134



Page 123 of 134



Page 124 of 134



Page 125 of 134



Page 126 of 134



Page 127 of 134



Page 128 of 134



Page 129 of 134



Page 130 of 134



Page 131 of 134



    
ENROLLED 
HB 1157  2007 Legislature 
 

 
  
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1157-01-er 

Page 1 of 2

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S

A bill to be entitled 1 

An act relating to the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, 2 

Brevard County; authorizing an amendment to the district 3 

charter, subject to approval by a vote of the electors of 4 

the district, to decrease the number of members of the 5 

board of trustees of the district; authorizing an 6 

amendment to the charter, subject to approval by a vote of 7 

the electors of the district, to allow an increase in the 8 

minimum cost price or consideration of contracts involving 9 

the acquisition of real or tangible personal property that 10 

would require a two-thirds vote of district trustees and a 11 

referendum election; providing exceptions to general law; 12 

providing an effective date. 13 

 14 

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 15 

 16 

 Section 1.  Notwithstanding section 418.302, Florida 17 

Statutes, the Brevard County Commission may amend the Charter of 18 

the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, subject to approval by a 19 

vote of the electors of the district pursuant to section 418.30, 20 

Florida Statutes, to require the transition of the governing 21 

body of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District from a nine-member 22 

board of trustees to a five-member board of trustees elected by 23 

the electors of the district. 24 

 Section 2.  Notwithstanding section 418.304(13), Florida 25 

Statutes, the Brevard County Commission may amend the Charter of 26 

the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, subject to approval by a 27 

vote of the electors of the district pursuant to section 418.30, 28 

Page 132 of 134



    
ENROLLED 
HB 1157  2007 Legislature 
 

 
  
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb1157-01-er 

Page 2 of 2

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S

Florida Statutes, to allow the Board of Trustees of the Barefoot 29 

Bay Recreation District to enter into contracts involving the 30 

purchase, lease, conveyance, or other manner of acquisition of 31 

common, real, or tangible personal property; however, in any 32 

instance when the cost, price, or consideration exceeds 33 

$125,000, including all obligations proposed to be assumed in 34 

connection with such acquisition, then such a contract may be 35 

entered into only if: 36 

 (1)  The trustees by a two-thirds vote have approved the 37 

terms and conditions of such acquisition by written resolution; 38 

 (2)  Within not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days 39 

after the date of the resolution, the trustees certify the 40 

resolution to the supervisor of elections for the county for a 41 

referendum election; and 42 

 (3)  The resolution is approved by a majority vote of the 43 

qualified electors of the district voting in a referendum called 44 

for the purpose of considering the resolution. 45 

 Section 3.  This act shall take effect upon becoming a law. 46 

Page 133 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Title: Review of the Florida Association of Special Districts 

Annual Conference
Section & Item: 12.G
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Jeff Grunow, Trustee, Secretary
Attachments:
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review information to be provided by Trustee Grunow and direction to staff.
 

Background and Summary Information
Trustee Grunow attended the FASD Conference and will provide key take aways from the conference the BOT and 
public.

Page 134 of 134


	1. Thought of the Day
	2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
	3. Roll Call
	4. Presentations and Proclamations
	A. Barefoot Bay 50th Anniversary Celebration Proclama

	5. Approval of Minutes
	A. Minutes dated June 11, 2021.
	06.11.2021


	6. Treasurer’s Report
	A. Treasurer’s Report
	Treasurers BOT Meeting Report 210622


	7. Oath of Office
	8. Reorganization of the BOT
	9. Appointment to the NRP Sub-Committee
	A. Neighborhood Revitalization Sub-Committee Appointm

	10. Audience Participation
	11. Unfinished Business
	12. New Business
	A. Adoption of FY 22 Budget
	Agenda Memo
	attachment Resolution Adoption of FY22 Budget
	Exhibit A summary proposed budget

	B. Public Hearing and Adoption of FY 22 Assessment Ra
	Agenda Memo
	attachment~Resolution Setting FY22 Assessment Rate

	C. Shopping Center Lease for Building 1 Unit 6 (Old V
	Agenda Memo
	Shaw tenative old VA Service Center lease agreement 22June21

	D. Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades RFP Evaluation
	Agenda Memo
	060721 Shopping Center Electrical Upgrade RFP Evalauation Committee meeting minutes
	Proposal combined
	Proposal Opening Tally sheet 07Jun21

	E. Confirmation of Approval of Proposal for Building
	Agenda Memo
	ADS signed proposal 08Jun21

	F. Proposal to Change BBRD's Charter to Increase the
	Agenda Memo
	BBRD-Charter-and-Amendments updated 2018
	HB 1157 (2007)

	G. Review of the Florida Association of Special Distr
	Agenda Memo


	13.  Manager’s Report
	A. June 22, 2021 Manager's Report

	14. Attorney’s Report
	15. Incidental Trustee Remarks
	16. Adjournment



